

TRIBHUVAN UNIVERSITY

INSTITUTE OF ENGINEERING

PULCHOWK CAMPUS

THESIS NO.:M-130-MSTIM-2020-2023

EV Charging Station Placement Strategy Considering Power Grid Impact for Future Expansion of EV in Kathmandu Valley: A Case Study of Sanepa Feeder

by

Rusha Shrestha

A THESIS

SUBMITTED TO THE DEPARTMENT OF MECHANICAL AND AEROSPACE ENGINEERING IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DEGREE OF MASTER OF SCIENCE IN TECHNOLOGY AND INNOVATION MANAGEMENT

DEPARTMENT OF MECHANICAL AND AEROSPACE ENGINEERING LALITPUR, NEPAL

OCTOBER, 2023

COPYRIGHT

The author has agreed that the library, Department of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering, Pulchowk Campus, Institute of Engineering may make this thesis freely available for inspection. Moreover, the author has agreed that permission for extensive copying of this thesis for scholarly purpose may be by the professor(s) who supervised the work recorded herein or, in their absence, by the Head of the Department wherein the thesis was done. It is understood that the recognition will be given to the author of this thesis and to the Department of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering, Pulchowk Campus, Institute of Engineering in any use of the material of this thesis. Copying or publication or the other use of this thesis for financial gain without approval of the Department of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering, Pulchowk Campus, Institute of Engineering and author's written permission is prohibited.

Request for permission to copy or to make any other use of the material in this thesis in whole or in part should be addressed to:

Head

Department of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering Pulchowk Campus, Institute of Engineering Lalitpur, Kathmandu Nepal



TRIBHUVAN UNIVERSITY

INSTITUTE OF ENGINEERING

PULCHOWK CAMPUS

DEPARTMENT OF MECHANICAL AND AEROSPACE ENGINEERING

The undersigned certify that they have read, and recommended to the Institute of Engineering for acceptance, a thesis entitled "EV Charging Station Placement Strategy Considering Power Grid Impact for Future Expansion of EV in Kathmandu Valley: A Case Study of Sanepa Feeder" by Rusha Shrestha in partial fulfilment of the requirements for the degree of Master of Science in Technology and Innovation Management.

Supervisor, Dr. Shree Raj Shakya Associate Professor Department of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering

External Examiner, Er. Hitendra Dev Shakya Former, Managing Director Nepal Electricity Authority

Committee Chairperson, Dr.Sudip Bhattrai Head Department of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering

Date: October 9, 2023

ABSTRACT

Increasing concerns over the unsustainable fossil fuel consumption and initiatives to achieve the Sustainable Development Goals (SDG), the interests over battery operated electric vehicles (EVs) are increasing. While the primary infrastructure to flourish this technology is charging stations, the impact of such load on the distribution network is somehow being shadowed. When the load from EV chargers are being added to existing power system, the voltage fluctuations and power loss are imminent. This study analyzed the impact of addition of EV charging load on the Sanepa distribution network. The system modelling was performed using DigSILENT PowerFactory tool and the optimal placement of EV charging station along the feeder line was determined using Particle Swarm Optimization (PSO) technique in MATLAB environment. The impact of EV charging station load placement on the distribution network were studied through the behavior analysis of Voltage stability, Reliability and Power loss (VRP) parameters of the line before and after load addition. The results from impact analysis on VRP index was used in defining the objective function for optimization. The optimal locations for EV charging station placement were obtained which effectively addressed concerns of power grid impact. This study shows random placement of EV charging station loads cause severe effect on network quality while strategically placed loads not only reduce the power grid impact but also increase system efficiency and reliability.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I acknowledge my deep gratitude to my project supervisor **Dr. Shree Raj Shakya** and my program coordinator **Dr. Sanjeev Maharjan** for the insightful lessons, guidance and inspiration with this study.

I am very grateful and thankful to **Dr. Sudip Bhattrai**, Head of Department, **Department of Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering** and faculty for encouraging and broadening my knowledge in this research.

I sincerely thank Patan Distribution Center and Ratnapark Distribution Center, NEA for providing data and resources for this study.

I extend my thanks to my colleagues who provided constant support throughout the study.

I take opportunity to thank the authors and publishers of all the sources that helped in every step of this study.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

COPYRIGHT2
ABSTRACT4
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS
TABLE OF CONTENTS
LIST OF FIGURES
LIST OF TABLES
LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS
CHAPTER ONE: INTRODUCTION
1.1 Background
1.2 Problem Statement
1.3 Objective
1.3.1 Main Objective15
1.3.2 Specific Objectives
CHAPTER TWO: LITERATURE REVIEW16
CHAPTER THREE: METHODOLOGY21
3.1 System Description
3.2 Distribution network operational parameters
3.2.1 Voltage Stability
3.2.2 Reliability
3.2.3 Power Losses
3.3 Impact analysis on VRP parameters
3.4 Formulation and Optimization of Charging station placement problem29
3.3.1 Formulation of EV charging station problem on the basis of VRP Index 29

3.3.2 Particle Swarm Optimization Technique
CHAPTER FOUR: RESULT AND DISCUSSION
4.1 System modelling
4.1.2 Sanepa 21 bus system model
4.2 Impact Analysis
4.2.1 Impact analysis on voltage stability
4.2.2 Impact analysis on reliability indices41
4.2.3 Impact analysis on power loss
4.2.4 Comparative analysis
4.3 Optimal EVCS placement considering VRP index
4.3.1 Assigning weights
4.3.2 Optimal placement
4.4 Discussion
4.4.1 Result Interpretation
4.4.2 Electricity Demand Assessment
4.4.3 Financial Analysis50
CHAPTER FIVE: CONCLUSION
5.1 Conclusion
5.2 Recommendation
REFERENCES
APPENDIX A: LINE DATA
APPENDIX B: LOAD DATA
APPENDIX C: RELIABILITY DATA

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1: Overall Methodology	22
Figure 2: Sanepa feeder GIS map	23
Figure 3: VSF determination	25
Figure 4: 2-bus system single line diagram	26
Figure 5: Impact analysis methodology	29
Figure 6: PSO flowchart for optimal EVCS placement	32
Figure 7:21 bus Sanepa Feeder Network	33
Figure 8: Sanepa Feeder Network Model	34
Figure 9: Voltage profile at base case	34
Figure 10: PV curve with load increment	35
Figure 11: Voltage profiles at base and critical loading	36
Figure 12: System voltage profile for test cases	39
Figure 13: Convergence graph after optimal placement	46
Figure 14: Voltage profile before and after optimal placement of EVCS	47
Figure 15: Active Power loss before and after optimal placement of EVCS	48
Figure 16: Reactive power loss before and after optimal placement of EVCS	48
Figure 17: SAIFI before and after optimal placement of EVCS	48
Figure 18: SAIDI before and after optimal placement of EVCS	49
Figure 19: Daily load curve of Sanepa Feeder line	49

LIST OF TABLES

Table 1: VSF computation	37
Table 2: Selection of cases for EVCS load addition	38
Table 3: VSI calculation	40
Table 4: Reliability indices calculation	41
Table 5: Power loss on different test cases	43
Table 6: Change in VRP indices\	44
Table 7: Weightage on input parameters	45
Table 8: Optimal placement of EVCS	46
Table 9: Meter reading history of a charging station in Ratnapark DC	50

LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

EV	Electric Vehicle
SDG	Sustainable Development Goals
VRP	Voltage Stability, Reliability and Power loss
PSO	Particle Swarm Optimization
CO_2	Carbon Dioxide
UN	United Nations
GHG	Greenhouse Gases
EVCS	Electric Vehicle Charging Stations
NEA	Nepal Electricity Authority
DC	Direct Current
AC	Alternating Current
LV	Low Voltage
DG	Distributed Generator
PV	Photo Voltaic
BESS	Battery Energy Storage System
PHEV	Plugged in Hybrid Electric Vehicle
SAIFI	System Average Interruption Frequency Index
SAIDI	System Average Interruption Duration Index
CAIDI	Customer Average Interruption Duration Index
CAIFI	Customer Average Interruption Frequency Index
MAIFI	Momentary Average Interruption Frequency Index
ASAI	Average Service Availability Index
ENS	Energy Not Served
AENS	Average Energy Not Served
GA	Genetic Algorithm
ACO	Ant Colony Optimization
ACSR	Aluminum Conductor Steel Reinforced
HT ABC	HT Aerial Bunched Cables
GIS	Geographic Information System

VSF	Voltage Sensitivity Factor
VSI	Voltage Stability Index
Pbest	Personal Best
Gbest	Global Best
PV Curve	Power Voltage Curve
CCS	Combined Charging System

CHAPTER ONE: INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

With the increasing concern over the climate change and global warming, the need of changes on mobility and power sector has been realized. The fuel powered transportation sector is realized to be one of the most contributors to CO₂ emissions with 22 percent of CO_2 emission in the year 2020 (Giannakis et al., 2020). As per the UN data, between 2010 and 2015 only. The transport sector was responsible for consumption of 28 percent of annual final energy and 60 percent of oil products in global scale as presented on the Policy Briefs in support of the first SDG 7 review at the UN high-level political forum 2018. This has led the world to step forward with the renewable energy sources for sustainable mobility. In addition to reduction of Greenhouse gases (GHG) emission, the transportation sector decarbonization will contribute in reduction of air pollution, health hazards and high pricing of the petroleum products which the world has been facing in the recent years. Globally, many agendas have been placed forward for the electrified transportation sector strengthening the electricity production through renewable resources like solar, wind, hydro, tidal, etc. Nepal being the country blessed with hydro resources, has realized this opportunity to contribute in achieving the electric mobility targets. Road transports dominates the transportation structure of Nepal covering about 90% of it (Acharya et al., 2015). The introduction of ropeways, Trolleybuses and Safa Tempo earlier in the century has demonstrated the rich history of e-mobility in Nepal. However, the number decreased due to lack of policies and infrastructures. Recently, the interest on Electric Vehicle (EV) has gained much popularity in Nepal with introduction of electric-two wheelers and cars. Currently, there are altogether 34,000 EV in the country contributing 1% on the total vehicles of the country (MoFE, 2021). The number is expected to rise with the recent tax reduction in the EVs and development of proper charging infrastructures and policies.

Electric Vehicles are gaining popularity in the Nepali Market. There are many EV brands which are being sold by the authorized distributor while some are being manufactured in here. The brand like TheeGo, Yatri and Nepal Electric Vehicle Industry (NEVI) are the manufacturers of EV in Nepal. Sundar Yatayat and Sajha Yatayat has introduced public EV transport in the country. BYD, Hyundai, KIA, Tata

12

motors, MG motors are the brands of EV being sold in Nepal by authorized distributor. These brands have installed their own EV charging stations (EVCS) in many parts and major cities of the country allowing their own customer with EV charging facilities. Charging is of major concern when it comes to electric vehicle. And currently most of the EVs require hour or more for complete charging. As being said, the charging infrastructure is not enough for the rising customer. The major requirement for flourishing EV business in Nepal is the availability of Charging infrastructure. To provide public EV charging facilities, NEA is building 51 EV charging stations all over Nepal in first phase. Kathmandu valley alone will have 7 EV charging stations. The contract has been awarded, the work has been started and it is expected that within coming two months, the charging stations will come into operation. Each charger will have 142 kW capacity with 3 points (2DC and 1AC charging) providing the power of 60 kW for DC and 22kW for AC charging. As of March 2023, 20 EV charging stations have been already installed in major cities of Nepal, including Kathmandu and Pokhara. There are currently 72 charging stations in Nepal. Further, in second phase, NEA plans to add 500 EV charging stations all over the country. It has been possible due to the addition of 456MW capacity of biggest ever hydropower project of Nepal, Upper Tamakoshi Hydropower Plant. For charging EV, time slots and tariff has been developed by NEA which are Peak hour (5:00pm to 11:00pm) at the rate of Rs. 7 per hour, Peak off hour (11:00pm to 5:00am) at the rate of Rs 3.70 per hour and Normal hour (5:00am to 5:00pm) at the rate of Rs 5.50 per hour.

However, the adverse effect of EV charging loads on the distribution network and its operational parameters must be addressed and minimized. The load due to EV charging is high enough to cause fluctuations on voltage profile and reliability. If neglected, it may severely decrease the reliability of the system causing the outage of the network. There have been investigations carried out by researchers on the impacts potentially caused by the charging station loads on the distribution network. The different scenarios for EV penetration were studied on LV distribution network in which it was found that the node voltage profile was degraded due to placement of multiple charging stations and also the weak buses went through degradation of their voltage profile due to high EV charging loads (Geske et al., 2010). So, it becomes very necessary to find out the optimal placement of EV charging stations in a distribution network. In this project, a distribution network inside Kathmandu Valley is taken into consideration for

supporting and facilitating the addition of EV charging stations across the network. The feeder distribution network is analyzed before and after the EV charging load conditions with the calculation and analysis of operational parameters (Voltage Stability and Power Loss). Optimization techniques are used for finding the optimal location for EV charging station placement in the distribution network using the operational parameters.

1.2 Problem Statement

Global concern has been directed towards the alarming issue of global warming, climate change, fossil fuel depletion and environmental pollution. With these alarming concerns the search of the alternatives for the fuel consumption has been increasing. This has mainly affected the areas with high energy consumption including the transportation system. E-mobility came into light amidst these concerns. The demand of electrical energy for powering up the vehicles has grown significantly giving rise to several technologies for utilization of renewable sources for electricity production. With this, the production as well as consumption of EV has also increased. While many countries are struggling to decrease the battery size and increase the battery charging process, most of developing countries are facing the problem of inadequate charging stations for EV. Nepal currently has 72 charging station which are privately owned and offers service to own customers, while the number of public charging stations is very low. The number of EV charging stations increased rapidly in just one-year span of time. In addition to it, NEA has completed the project of building 51 EV charging stations all over the country majority of which recently came into operation. The country was anticipated for this project and the results are affirmative too, however, will that be enough for the growing EV consumers in the country? The answer is negative. The EV adoption target has been set for year 2025 and 2030 with EV adoption target of 25% of all private vehicles and 20% of all 4-wheeler public passenger vehicle by the year 2025 and EV adoption target of 90% of all private vehicles and 60% of all 4-wheeler public passenger vehicle by the year 2030.

Currently, NEA installed 51 and few charging stations across the country which were forecasted and placed as per the EV density in highways, so the concerns related with the effect of charging station load on power networks is less. However, NEA plans to install 500 and more charging stations across the country through private partnerships.

This can take a toll on the existing distribution Network. The effects are seen in voltage profile, stability, efficiency and on other critical factors of power system. This is because, the battery capacity of EV found in Nepal is in the range from 17 kWh to 75 kWh depending upon the brand. When the load of high capacity of this extent is added in the system, the system operating factors fluctuates causing system outage on worst case scenarios as it forces additional burden on the power network.

That's why it is necessary to plan on the optimal positioning of the charging station on the distribution network so that the operational parameters of the network are least or not affected. This paper proposes to optimize the placement of EV charging stations on the distribution feeder buses realizing least impact on the power network due to fast charging and slow charging of the connected EV load.

1.3 Objective

1.3.1 Main Objective

The main objective of the study is to determine optimal location for EV charging stations considering operational parameters in Sanepa distribution network of Kathmandu valley using Particle Swarm Optimization technique.

1.3.2 Specific Objectives

The specific objectives of this project include:

- 1. To perform feasibility analysis for placement of EV charging station in Sanepa feeder line.
- 2. To analyze the operational parameters of the distribution network before and after addition of EV charging load.
- 3. To assess effects on demand for electricity due to EV charging service.
- 4. To study the financial aspect of EV charging stations.

CHAPTER TWO: LITERATURE REVIEW

(Shakya & Shrestha, 2011) analyzed the combined benefits of electrification of transport sector concerning GHG emission reduction, energy security and energy generation between year 2015 to 2050. The study assessed the impacts of attaining the portion of land transportation energy demand through electric vehicles and electrified mass transportation. The study concluded that the energy import could be decreased by 14.6% in comparison with base case considering 35% of electrified transportation scenario during the year 2015-2050.

(Krupa, 2019) emphasized on the possible barriers as well as opportunities on EV development in Nepal. It points out that for developing EV infrastructures, considering dynamic EV driving experience is equally necessary that accounts for the charging and the distance. It stresses on the availability of public charging stations are necessary for increasing mass involvement particularly in longer travelling distance. However, there should be strategic station location however the unavailability of larger parking space in Kathmandu and the hilly terrain geographical feature of the country sets up peculiar barriers. Yet, the plans for the charging stations are coming up from public as well as private sector allowing joint investment.

(Arif et al., 2021) discussed the recent vehicle technology, charging standards, methods The authors emphasized and optimization techniques. on electrification of transportation system and detailed on Conventional, Hybrid, Fuel Cell and Electric Vehicles. For urban driving, EV is most suitable as the vehicle is frequently started and stopped and during the time vehicle can recapture some of kinetic energy into battery. For the charging methods of EV, the major charging techniques includes conductive charging, battery exchange and wireless charging. There are several levels and standards of AC and DC charging used around the globe. Mostly EV's integrated with smart grid due to which there is intermittent demand and supply that introduces energy losses on the distribution system. This makes sizing and placement of distributed generator (DG) and charging stations of EV more complicated as it relates to contradictory objectives and constraints. To overcome these issues, optimization techniques are implemented.

16

(Islam et al., 2015b) presented the methodology for optimal placement of charging station. The major issue in EV system is that the vehicle needs to be recharged before it gets exhausted which is why the location of charging station must be placed carefully ensuring that the users are able to access the charging point within their driving range. The placement should be optimized so that it minimizes the combined cost of grid losses as well as EV transportation. Huge EV entrance number can have inimical impacts on the power system, in terms of power loss and exceeding voltage limit but when the EV position is far from charging station, the transportation energy loss is increased. So, the transportation energy loss also should be considered along with the grid energy losses while designing charging station positions.

(Karki et al., 2019) focused on the management of power flow for charging EV loads by modeling the charging station with battery, PV and grid sources as the grid energy losses requires serious concern when prioritizing power system. The nature of EV load demand in the charging station must be estimated and demand and supply matching are necessary for maintaining the balance. When the fast charging of EV is supported by PV and BESS into the grid, the grid stress due to fast charging is significantly reduced. The sources are prioritized for fulfilling the power demand that supports the uncoordinated EV charging mechanisms. The load is effectively shared between several sources through the implementation of droop regulation technique.

(Eminoglu & Hocaoglu, 2007) idealized the parameters and variables of network that give adequate information on collapsing of the bus based on their sensitivity. The idea proposed was founded on the approach of transferring the active as well as reactive power of the line. The proposed mechanism was able to provide information on sensitive buses likely to collapse in a radial network.

(Amin et al., 2020) highlighted the importance and advantages of smart grid. The grid is equipped with information and communication features that makes it self-regulated system. The system allows vehicle to grid feature for supporting the services that includes load regulation and frequency tuning. Moreover, with this optimized scheduling of EV charging is possible. It is necessary to stress over the negative impacts imposed by random and uncoordinated EV charging techniques which includes increase in power loss, severe variation in voltages, network overload, etc. The

17

operating performance of the utility can be improved with coordinated charging mechanisms.

(Ardakanian et al., 2013) presents a different approach to control EV charging. The heavy load of EV and unpredictable EV mobility is a challenge for the distribution network. As per the smart grid, the algorithm for distributed control of load assists in adaption of EV charging rate with the network capacity ensuring each EV load is fulfilled with fair portion of the resource. It is better to rely on rapid measurements and communication to prevent obstinate congestion and supplication of protection techniques rather than forecasting EV and non-EV numbers for further hours and cracking the optimization problem. With the application of mathematical framework developed for rate control, EV chargers can update their charging rate independently. Through EV charging, the control algorithm can implement demand response in the distribution network. However, the system requires rapid and heavy communication that makes it difficult to achieve its responsiveness.

(Deb et al., 2018a) stated the adverse effects introduced by charging loads of EV on several operational parameters of distribution network has been increased with the universal resurgence of EVs. The higher charging loads imposed by fast charging stations has resulted in increment of peak load demand, decrement pf reserve margins, reliability issues and voltage instabilities. The impacts are so severe which cannot be neglected. That is why, it is necessary to understand severity of the impacts in the distribution network on several cases. Before the placement of charging stations, the strength of bus and the load due to charging must be considered. A strategy can be devised for the charging station placement in the network on the basis of voltage stability, reliability and power loss (VRP) index which can minimize the severity of high load impact.

(Rahman et al., 2013) discussed a method for site selection of PHEV charging station considering the voltage sensitivity factor in the commercial distribution network. The method presented analysis of the specific system through PV curve. While the PV curve have the maximum system ability of loading, it was further used for calculating the voltage sensitivity factor of all buses associated with the system. The study declared that the bus with smallest percentage change in VSF can be regarded as the best bus for siting the charging station.

(Sangob & Sirisumrannukul, 2021) proposed a method or guidelines which would be useful for utilities in supporting mass adoption of EV in future. Since, the distribution system is single phase type, the system is exposed to higher unbalance degree and requires a three-phase power flow analysis. Generally, the amount of loading and bust location are two factors which impacts the bus voltage. The load current increment accompanies the voltage level reduction in the circuit. This study draws out the conclusion that even though the utilization factor of distribution transformer is improved by smart charging, it can lead to higher accumulated energy loss in longer period. The research offers deterministic judgement for this problem. Further, considering the long-term plan, the application of traditional LV distribution plan led to inaccurate investments for which the study proposes sequential decision as adaptive solution for beneficial LV reinforcement short lead time and for tackling the uncertain EV load penetration.

(Okorie et al., 2015) discussed about certain indicators that portray the reliability of an Electrical Distribution Network. System Average Interruption Frequency Index (SAIFI), System Average Interruption Duration Index (SAIDI), Customer Average Interruption Duration Index (CAIDI), Customer Average Interruption Frequency Index (CAIFI), Momentary Average Interruption Frequency Index (MAIFI), Average Service Availability Index (ASAI) and CEMI5 which are customer-oriented reliability indices while the indicators like ENS and AENS provide energy-oriented reliability indices Any of these indicators can be used for determining the reliability of the network.

(Muthukannan & Karthikaikannan, 2022) presented development of newer multiobjective planning model for EV considering the coverage, loss reduction and improvement of voltage profile as objective function. The study explained why the EV deployment give rise to challenges for operating distribution system securely. So, the location problem must be capable of reducing the hazardous impact in power system. While many conventional optimization techniques are available, the optimal locating EV infrastructure, being a planning activity, the offered solution impacts the capital investment and hence a correct optimization technique algorithm is necessary.

(Raj Kunwar et al., 2020) proposed the techniques of power flow in concern for charging Electric Vehicles by designing the topology that supports fast EV charging with PV and BESS penetration in the grid for as to reduce the grid stress. The study

emphasized on load sharing effectively by several sources through droop regulation application. The study concluded that the renewable energy source penetration of EV charging reduces the grid electricity charges resulting in faster investment return.

(Islam et al., 2015a) presented a comprehensive review on optimization techniques for placement problem of EV. The optimal placement for the charging station is necessary from several viewpoint like, economic impact and power grid impact. There are methods like Genetic algorithm (GA), Particle Swarm Optimization (PSO), Ant Colony Optimization (ACO), etc. regarding the problem. The comparative analysis of these techniques delivers several benefits and limitations for each system.

Different research studies have been conducted regarding the optimal placement of EV charging station in distributed system. The study of impact made by EV load on grid has been studied and optimizing the EV load placement has also been conducted considering the operating parameters of distribution network. However, the nature of placement problem is different according to the real time data so, the variation of distribution network, EV availability and density are some of the factors that provides uniqueness to this optimal placement problem.

CHAPTER THREE: METHODOLOGY

This work emphasizes on the study of Sanepa distribution feeder of Kathmandu valley for EV charging station placement in view of the fact that the valley being densely populated city in terms of EV customers as well as EV charging stations. The methodology for this study can be divided into two sections: impact analysis and optimization. Impact analysis stresses on determining operational parameters with the addition of EV charging station load. The impact analysis is performed through DigSILENT PowerFactory modelling. Followed by impact analysis is optimization. The optimal locations for EVCS are allocated based on the results by the former. The optimization is conducted using MATPOWER in MATLAB environment.

The general methodology for this study is shown in figure below.



Figure 1: Overall Methodology

3.1 System Description

There are 220, 132, 66 and 33 kV network that are feeding Kathmandu Valley which includes Siuchatar Substation(132/66/11kV), Balaju Substation(132/66/11 kV), Matatirtha Substation(132/33/11kV), Chapali Substation(132/66/11kV), Bhaktapur Substation(132/66/11kV), Lamosanghu Substation(132/33kV), Chabahil Substation(66/11kV), Lainchaur Substation(66/11kV), K-3 Substation(66/11kV), Teku Patan Substation(66/11kV), Banepa Substation(66/11kV), Panchkhal Substation, Substation(66/11kV) and Baneshwor Substation(66/11kV). The feeder under study Sanepa feeder is supplied through Thapathali Switching Station. The EV charging stations are to be provided with 3-phase, 400V, 50 Hz AC supply through the distribution transformers connected at 11 kV feeder line as per the specifications on (NEA, 2020).

The radial feeder under study is Sanepa feeder supplied by Thapathali Switching Station. The feeder consists of 21 buses and 20 lines. This 11kV system caters commercial as well as residential loads and has combination of ACSR Dog and HT ABC conductors for distribution. The transformers are taken as the buses or load points on the system. 11kV lines are taken as distribution lines with the grid substations feeding the line as source and transformers as load points or buses. This study involved primary as well as secondary method of data collection. The primary data is collected from NEA substation and interpreted according to need. The assumptions are also made to accommodate for the unavailability of the data. The physical nature of feeder is studied using GIS software. The GIS image of the feeder is shown in the figure below:



Figure 2: Sanepa feeder GIS map

3.2 Distribution network operational parameters

The major operational parameter of the distribution system network is given by VRP i.e., voltage stability, reliability and power losses. This index helps to analyze the impact of charging load addition in the distribution network. Each of the index are computed and analyzed separately considering before and after loading conditions. So, it can be said that this index provides information about three major operating parameters of the network when the network is imposed with any sort of disturbances. Under this exertion, the major three operational parameters of the distribution line network voltage, reliability and power loss (VRP) is considered. This section provides brief overview on calculation of major operational parameters.

3.2.1 Voltage Stability

The voltage stability gives the voltage conditions in the line considering the voltage drop and fluctuations. Voltage stability can be defined as the capability of the power system to maintain its steady voltage at every system bus at the normal load conditions as well as at application of external disturbances (Kessel and Glavitsch, 1986). For a system to be stable, it's voltage levels should be within the acceptable limits under any load conditions. For the analysis of voltage stability, the computation of Voltage Stability Index (VSI) and Voltage Sensitivity Factor (VSF) are carried out in this study.

3.2.1.1 Voltage Sensitivity Factor (VSF)

VSF denotes the ratio of voltage change (dV) to the change in active load(dP). It is the measure sensitivity of the system voltage with stepwise loading increment. Mathematically, it is expressed as:

$$VSF = \left|\frac{dV}{dP}\right| V P < P_{max}$$
(1)

High value of VSF indicates lesser voltage stability, that means even with small changes on loading behavior, there is significant change in voltage drop (Deb et al., 2018). The analysis of voltage stability suggests all voltage drop to be within 6% of their nominal value. The calculation of VSF is done directly through modelling in PowerFactory with the determination of PV curve. The methodology for VSF computation is shown in the following figure



Figure 3: VSF determination

3.2.1.2 Voltage Stability Index (VSI)

Voltage collapse is one of the evident problems in distribution system which occurs due to instability of the system. It is necessary to compute an index for checking in the voltage stability of the system which helps to determine the behavior and bus proximity that is highly subjected to voltage collapse. (Eminoglu and Hocaoglu, 2007) developed a stability index using the transferred active as well as reactive power distribution line equation after the execution of power flow analysis in the network. For the determination of this

index, its mathematical formulation is presented through illustration of 2 bus system as shown in the figure.



Figure 4: 2-bus system single line diagram

After the execution of load flow analysis in the distribution network, the node voltage and branch currents are obtained along with active and reactive power flow in the system. Using the load flow results, VSI can be calculated by following equation.

$$VSI = 2V_{j}^{2}V_{j+1}^{2} - V_{j}^{4} - 2V_{j+1}^{2}(P_{j+1}r + Q_{j+1}x) - |Z|^{2}(P_{j+1}^{2} + Q_{j+1}^{2}) \ge 0$$
(2)

Where V = Voltage at bus

P = Active Power

Q = Reactive Power

I = current through the branch

r = resistance of the branch

x = impedance of the branch

j = bus number

3.2.2 Reliability

From engineering point of view, reliability refers to the system's capability to achieve its function for its anticipated lifetime under different conditions of operation. While, from consumer's point of view, the uninterrupted power supply in their homes and offices is regarded as reliability. In both cases, the duration and frequency of interruption at load point acts as important elements for determination of reliability indices(Mazidi and Sreenivas, 2015). The reliability indices can be divided into two groups which are customer oriented and energy oriented. There are subdivisions among these categories. SAIFI, SAIDI and CAIDI are the major sub category of customer-oriented reliability indices which is used in this study. While the energy-oriented category is sub divided into ENS and AENS. The total indices can be determined through summation of the index of all buses. The indices are defined as:

SAIFI: It can be defined as a number of times a customer encounters system interruption in a certain time period. It signifies the condition of system based on interruption. Mathematically,

$$SAIFI = \frac{\Sigma \lambda j N j}{\Sigma N j} ;$$
(3)

 $N_j = customer$ number at j^{th} -bus,

 λ_j = rate of failure at jth-bus

SAIDI: It can be defined as average duration of interruption per served customer. It signifies the system condition on the basis of interrupted duration. Mathematically,

$$SAIDI = \frac{\Sigma u j N j}{\Sigma N j} ; u_j = duration of interruption at jth-bus$$
(4)

CAIDI: It can be defined as the average duration time of interruption faced by the customers interrupted during a year. It provides the average duration of outage experience by any customer. Mathematically,

$$CAIDI = \frac{\Sigma ujNj}{\Sigma \lambda jNj}$$
(5)

ENS: It can be defined as the total energy that was not supplied by system. It indicates system deficiency. Mathematically,

$$ENS = \Sigma L_{j}u_{j} ; L_{j} = load at j^{th}-bus$$
(6)

AENS: It can be defined as the index of average system load curtailment. It gives the notion of energy which was not served during a certain time period. Mathematically,

$$AENS = \frac{\Sigma Ljuj}{\Sigma Nj}$$
(7)

3.2.3 Power Losses

Addition of EV charging load on a distribution line raises serious concerns over power loss. In simpler terms, power loss is the I²R loss of a system or line. The greater load addition means higher power consumption leading to increased power loss that might pose a threat towards achieving power security in the distribution system(Yuvaraj et al., 2023). Mitigation of power loss is necessary for ensuring grid stability and efficient operation. The effective solution to properly address the power loss due to EVCS load addition is to choose optimal locations which results in significantly lower change in power loss even with addition of load. The power loss of the network can be calculated by mathematical modelling. After the execution of load flow analysis in DigSILENT PowerFactory, the active and reactive power loss are computed. Total power loss is given by:

$$\mathbf{P}_{t} = \sum_{j=1}^{n} \mathbf{P}_{j} \tag{8}$$

Where, $P_t = total power loss$

 P_j = power loss at bus j

3.3 Impact analysis on VRP parameters

The growth in EVCS load addition and integration on distribution network is expected to increase significantly. The behavior of the power distribution network with the integration of such anticipated load needs to be studied. The change in distribution parameters like voltage stability, power loss and reliability are analyzed in this study considering different scenarios of load addition. The behavior of VRP indices before and after load addition are studied and comparatively analyzed in order to determine the most and least affected parameter with the addition of load. According to the results of comparative analysis, the weightage for these indices are assigned in order to formulate the optimization problem of this study. The methodology for this analysis is presented in following flowchart.



Figure 5: Impact analysis methodology

3.4 Formulation and Optimization of Charging station placement problem

3.3.1 Formulation of EV charging station problem on the basis of VRP Index

Optimal placement of EV charging is one of the applications of VRP index as this index provides us information about impacts subjected to power grid with addition and removal of load. A system remains stable until the impact on this index is not or least affected. The major objective of this problem formulation is to locate the EVCS position in the distribution line so as to minimize the impact on parameters of distribution system(Deb et al., 2018b). VRP Index can be mathematically formulated as:

 $VRP = w_1A + w_2B + w_3C$

Where,
$$A = \frac{1}{a}$$
, $a = VSI_l / VSI_{base}$ (10)

(9)

$$B = w_{21}SAIFI_{l}/SAIFI_{base} + w_{22}SAIDI_{l}/SAIDI_{base} + w_{23}CAIDI_{l}/CAIDI_{base}$$
(11)

$$C = P^{l}_{loss} / P_{loss base}$$
(12)

Here w_1 , w_2 (w_{21} , w_{22} and w_{23}) and w_3 are the weights assigned to the individual operational parameters term in the objective function. The weights are assigned after comparative analysis of change in VRP indices before and after load addition. The weightage depends on the severity of the impact on the parameters. In this study, the EV stations are allocated in the distribution network in such a manner that the effect on VRP index due to addition of EV load is minimum. For this purpose, VRP index is chosen as the objective function as it allows inclusion of voltage stability, reliability and power loss on a single equation.

For the formulation of placement problem, VRP index acts as the objective function laying out the decision variables and constraints for the case. The decision variables for this problem are number of buses in the distribution network where EVCS are placed (d) and number of charging station to be placed at the buses (n). The power flow balance equation is also taken as constraint in addition to following constraints.

The objective function can be stated as:

Min f(d, n): VRP =
$$w_1A + w_2B + w_3C$$
 (13)

subject to,

$$2 \le d_i \le d;$$
 $d = no. of buses for EVCS addition$ (14)

$$1 \le n_i \le n_{cs}$$
; $n_i = no.$ of charging stations at i^{th} bus, (15)

 $n_{cs} = max$ number of charging station to be placed at each bus

$$Q_{\min} \le Q_i \le Q_{\max}; \qquad Q = \text{reactive power}$$
(16)

$$L \le L_{max}$$
; $L = load$ increment due to EV charging station (17)

(18)

By assigning appropriate weights on the operational parameters, the optimization of the function can be performed using any of the optimization techniques which are Genetic Algorithm (GA), Particle Swarm Optimization (PSO), Integer Programming (IP), Greedy Algorithm, Cplex commercial software, etc. In this study, PSO will be incorporated as the optimization technique because of its easy implementation and high degree of accuracy in results. Incorporating PSO while determining the location of charging station maximizes their coverage, minimize costs, meeting the demands of EV users. The placement of EV charging stations has complex and multi-dimensional search space. PSO's ability to explore in such dimensional space is very effective for this work.

3.3.2 Particle Swarm Optimization Technique

In a distribution network, the minimizing system losses and attaining optimal power flow is always of a concern. The optimal power flow problems stresses over optimizing the power loss adjusting the power control variables meeting equality as well as inequality constraints. PSO is a powerful population-based optimization technique employed in such power system problems that focuses on voltage stability enhancement, power loss minimization and several other network problems. PSO considers global information for directing their solution towards optimal one. The global and personal best positions are determined every iteration for finding the optimal solution(K ita and Shin, 2012).

The application of PSO is done after calculation of certain parameters obtained after the load flow analysis of the system. After each iteration, new position and velocity is calculated updating the Personal best (Pbest) and Global best (Gbest) of the particle. The load flow analysis is conducted for every iteration and new values of voltage, active power and reactive power are used for parameters calculation. The incorporation of PSO is carried out until the optimal solution for the problem is attained. The flowchart illustrating the optimization methodology is shown in the following figure. In this study, the PSO is combined with MATPOWER toolbox and is used as an optimization tool for obtaining the optimal location of EVCS placement.



Figure 6: PSO flowchart for optimal EVCS placement

CHAPTER FOUR: RESULT AND DISCUSSION

4.1 System modelling

While studying a real case scenario, the data collection and availability plays a major role. The feeder components and lengths are obtained from GIS mapping. The data of this study consists of load data (active and reactive power), line data (resistance and reactance) and reliability data (failure rate, outage hours and number of consumers) associated with the considered feeder. So, the real time data related to the line, load and outage were collected and tabulated in Table 4, 5 and 6 in appendix section. The system under study is 21 bus and 20 branch radial system. The single line diagram depicting the 21-bus system is shown in following figure:



Figure 7: 21 bus Sanepa Feeder Network

4.1.2 Sanepa 21 bus system model

The model is created on DigSILENT PowerFactory software which provides a simple environment for load system modelling and load flow analysis. The line, load and customer data are provided into the system. First of all, the base case system is modelled at the base conditions of load and no external loads added to the system. The base case system model is shown in the figure below.



Figure 8: Sanepa Feeder Network Model

The load flow calculation is executed using Newton-Raphson power equation method. The results from the load flow analysis can be summarized as the voltage, phase angle, real, reactive power and line losses of the system. The voltage profile of the system at base case is illustrated in the graph below. The bus voltages range from 0.993 p.u. to 0.977 p.u.



Figure 9: Voltage profile at base case

The PV curve of the system is also plotted alongside the execution of load flow analysis. PV curve illustrates the bus voltage variation along with the percentage loading increment(Ashwin et al., 2019). PV curves allows the computation of real power margin and helps on assessing the voltage to MW transfer relationship. The following diagram is PV curve of the system showing the loading characteristics of each bus in the system.



Figure 10: PV curve with load increment

The extreme points of the PV curve are determined through load flow analysis. The distance between the extremes or nose points and current operating points of the system is the area or criteria of stability for the system. The PV curve provides critical loading ability of the system by providing the proximity of voltage collapse as well as loading margin(Ahiakwo et al., 2022). From the above PV curve, it can be seen that with the increased loading, there's increased slope in the graph and beyond the nose point or curved point, the increment of load will cause severe instability in the system causing voltage collapse. Considering the PV curve, critical loading of 3 is loading margin in this study given that the system converges.



Figure 11: Voltage profiles at base and critical loading

The voltage sensitivity factor is calculated in different loading conditions for the determination of strongest and weakest bus to exist in the system. VSF is a measure of sensitivity of the bus due to addition of load. The higher value of VSF denotes higher sensitivity of bus on load addition. In simpler terms, the bus with higher VSF reacts extremely with the change in loading and vice versa. Hence, the strong bus will have lower VSF while the weaker bus will have higher VSF value. The increment of loading causes increment on the value of sensitivity factor. VSF at loading factor 2 and 3 are computed which is tabulated in the following table.

Voltage Sensitivity Factor				
Bus no	Loading factor 2	Loading factor 3		
2	0.007081337	0.007087442		
3	0.012197484	0.012308503		
4	0.014699369	0.014898101		
5	0.018081379	0.018360713		
6	0.019290667	0.019662018		
7	0.021299831	0.021729288		
8	0.022892241	0.023393248		
9	0.023351191	0.023907644		
10	0.023934239	0.024519933		
11	0.024605138	0.02522398		
12	0.024840068	0.025478172		
13	0.019196179	0.019501622		
14	0.021346832	0.021767596		
15	0.021391357	0.021813752		
16	0.023366145	0.023908463		
17	0.02377221	0.024291329		
18	0.024249964	0.024850429		
19	0.024527575	0.025143614		
20	0.0245414	0.025162993		
21	0.02467951	0.025303232		

Table 1: VSF computation

From the above table, the lowest values of VSF computed is of Bus 2 which are 0.007081 and 0.007087 for loading factor 2 and 3 respectively. It can be concluded that bus 2 is the strongest and bus 3 is the second strongest bus of the system. The highest values of VSF is calculated for Bus 12 which are 0.02484 and 0.02548 for loading factor 2 and 3 respectively. The weakest and second weakest bus on the system are bus 12 and bus 21.

4.2 Impact Analysis

After the study of system in base case and different loading, the impact on system due to addition of EVCS load is analysed. The modelling of EVCS load on the existing system is carried out through consideration of different cases. The cases are considered such that one bus from the lower VSF group or strong group, one bus from average group and two buses from weaker group are included. The reason for this is to create diverse platforms for modelling the EVCS load in the network composed of high as well as less sensitive load points. The cases can be summarized in the table below:

Cases considered	Description	Load addition (kW)
Case 1	1 charger in strong bus group: Bus 5	142
Case 2	5 chargers in strong bus group: Bus 5	710
Case 3	2 chargers each in strong bus group and average group: Bus 5 and Bus 8	598
Case 4	1 charger in weak bus group: Bus 12	142
Case 5	2 chargers each in weak bus group: Bus 12 and Bus 21	568

Table 2: Selection of cases for EVCS load addition

EVCS loads are modelled in a respective manner and the results are used to analyse the impact of integrated load in VRP operational parameters. As designed by NEA, each charging station to be installed is of 142 kW capacity that consists of DC as well as AC chargers of capacity 60 kW for fast charging and 22 kW for AC charging. After performing the load flow analysis, the Voltage Stability Index and Power Losses for each case are calculated for each bus. Similarly, the reliability indices SAIFI, SAIDI, CAIDI and AENS are also calculated for each case. The voltage profile of the system due to these test cases is shown in following figure:



Figure 12: System voltage profile for test cases

4.2.1 Impact analysis on voltage stability

Voltage Stability Index is calculated after load flow analysis using Equation 2 for base case and different cases of EVCS load addition. This index gives the measure of stability the buses are able to maintain when the loads are added and removed from these points. The values of VSI are observed and tabulated in the following table.

Voltage Stability Index						
Bus no	Base	Case 1	Case 2	Case 3	Case 4	Case 5
2	0.97673	0.97609	0.97331	0.97434	0.97641	0.97434
3	0.89941	0.89603	0.88485	0.88550	0.89680	0.88628
4	0.91872	0.91750	0.90587	0.91133	0.91750	0.91133
5	0.89897	0.89345	0.88412	0.88457	0.89345	0.88510
6	0.91909	0.91532	0.90783	0.91066	0.91460	0.90900
7	0.90327	0.89954	0.89212	0.88988	0.89813	0.88805
8	0.90599	0.90226	0.89484	0.89274	0.90099	0.89274
9	0.91473	0.91099	0.90355	0.90355	0.91065	0.90275
10	0.90880	0.90881	0.89809	0.89809	0.90466	0.89662
11	0.90638	0.90264	0.89525	0.89525	0.90148	0.89338
12	0.90840	0.90841	0.89728	0.89728	0.90409	0.89655
13	0.92923	0.92545	0.91792	0.91792	0.92545	0.91792
14	0.92141	0.91765	0.91017	0.91017	0.91765	0.91017
15	0.92140	0.91764	0.91016	0.91016	0.91764	0.91016
16	0.91424	0.91424	0.90307	0.90307	0.91050	0.90307
17	0.89723	0.89353	0.88614	0.88614	0.89353	0.87776
18	0.91016	0.90643	0.89901	0.89901	0.90643	0.89399
19	0.90728	0.90728	0.89986	0.89986	0.90728	0.89751
20	0.91107	0.91107	0.89993	0.90364	0.91107	0.89993
21	0.90531	0.90531	0.89790	0.89790	0.9053	0.88843

Table 3: VSI calculation

From the table, it is seen that the value of VSI gradually decreases with the load addition in the system. The change in VSI is even more evident in the buses with EVCS load. In case 1, when EVCS load is added to one of the strong buses in the system, there is slight decrease in VSI in all buses. However, the change seen on the weak bus is much less which indicates the overall stability of the system is less affected when the load is added to strong bus.

In case 2, the load on bus 5 is increased by five times, which means 5 EVCS are integrated in bus 5. The impact of this greater load addition is seen on all buses. There

is significant drop on value of VSI. So, higher load addition significantly affects every other bus on the system even if the load is added on the strong bus.

When the load is integrated in strong and average bus in case 3, the impact is similar to case 2, but there is slight increment on VSI value on some buses. It is observed that rather than adding the higher load in single bus, the load can be distributed in different bus in order to maintain stability of the system.

One EVCS is added on weakest bus, bus 12 in case 4. There is slight decrement in value of VSI in case 4 than in case 1. That means, placing the EVCS in the strong bus rather than weak bus is better and causes minimal impact on the overall distribution network.

In case 5, two EVCS are placed in each of the two weakest bus of the system. In this case, the impact due to load addition is quite evident rather than on other cases. The impact is higher on the weaker bus group. The fluctuations on the voltage stability parameter is comparatively increased with load addition. So, it is observed that weak buses are not favourable for addition of EVCS.

4.2.2 Impact analysis on reliability indices

The reliability indices SAIFI, SAIDI, CAIDI and AENS are calculated for studying the impact of EVCS load addition. The calculation is carried out for all cases mentioned in Table 2. The computation of reliability indices for different cases were carried out using unitary method for the failure rate and outage duration. For the calculation, the formula in Equation 3, 4, 5 ad 7 are used. The failure rate data, outage duration data and number of consumer data used for calculation is shown in Appendix.

Cases	SAIFI	SAIDI	CAIDI	AENS
Base	51.85473684	9.605894737	0.185246234	85.63526316
Case1	50.17746306	9.295178829	0.18524609	85.29758563
Case2	44.43704257	8.231762716	0.185245512	84.14189415
Case3	55.94136709	10.36504452	0.185284076	85.30057106
Case4	50.18052505	9.295757204	0.185246312	85.78920439
Case5	45.89162733	8.501293757	0.185247163	86.19609856

Table 4: Reliability indices calculation

From above table, it is observed that the value of SAIFI and SAIDI decreases in cases 1, 2, 4 and 5, whereas, there is increment case 3. The load increment in case 1 and case 4, as well as, case 2 and case 5 is equal, so the similar values of SAIFI and SAIDI is observed in these cases. The equal increment of loads results in linear increment if average loads which causes slight decrease of SAIFI as well as SAIDI in the beginning and later on increase with the average load line, which is not the desired solution(Bhadra and Chattopadhyay, 2016). The decrement in the value of reliability indices like SAIFI, SAIDI and CAIDI can be because of following reasons:

- Load balancing: Load addition might lead to better load balancing across distribution network reducing overloads.
- Load diversity: Adding different types of loads such as residential, industrial and commercial can lead to more stable and diverse power consumption patterns which may result in fewer and shorter interruptions.

Even though, the reliability indices might have decreased in this case, the value of reliability indices for the network is quite concerning. The better approach for decreasing the interruption time and outage duration would be to improve infrastructure and enhance maintenance of the network. With the addition of new load in this system, the installation of improved and new infrastructure like transformers is a requirement which is expected to contribute for the reliability of the system. The more reliable system has almost constant line of SAIFI and SAIDI indicating the constant failure rate as well as outage duration during loaded conditions. Hence, it is seen that SAIFI and SAIDI are significantly affected with the EVCS load addition.

Further, the value of CAIDI remains almost same in all of the test cases that means customer-based index for average interruption duration is almost constant for all test cases denoting, this parameter of reliability is least or not affected due to the EVCS load addition. When the load is added non-uniform manner, the value of average energy not supplied tends to fluctuate but the impact is less severe than that of SAIFI and SAIDI.

4.2.3 Impact analysis on power loss

Power loss on each bus after the load addition according to the test cases is calculated. The power loss is calculated directly through load flow analysis in this study. The active power loss on each bus are summed up to calculate total power loss in the case. The total active power loss for the several cases are tabulated in following table.

Cases	Power loss (MW)
Base	0.076029
Case 1	0.080328
Case 2	0.099032
Case 3	0.096435
Case 4	0.08192
Case 5	0.099743

Table 5: Power loss on different test cases

From the above scenario, it is observed that power loss of the distribution network is increased with the introduction of EVCS load in the system. In case 1 has the lowest active power loss while case 5 results in highest power loss among all cases. In case 1, one EVCS load is added on one of the strong bus while in case 5, two EVCS load are added to each of the two weak buses. Also, the power loss in case 2 is lower than case 5. This means, the addition of higher load on one strong bus is more suitable than addition of divided load in weaker buses in terms of power loss. Furthermore, the power loss in case 3 is lower than that of case 2. In case 2, five number of EVCS load are integrated while in case 3, four EVCS are placed in two buses. Hence, the concentrating load on one bus, even though the bus is strong one produces higher power loss. So, distributing the load among the buses significantly reduces power loss. With the number of EVCS load addition, the impact on power loss also increases.

4.2.4 Comparative analysis

After studying the impact of EVCS load placement in the system, the comparative analysis is conducted. The results from individual analysis of impact on voltage stability, power loss and reliability due to placement of EVCS in the system are brought together for this analysis. The change in each parameter from base case to different considered cases are calculated and tabulated in following table.

Cases	ΔVSI	Δ Power loss	ΔSAIFI	ΔSAIDI	ΔCAIDI
Case 1	0.002644	0.056551	0.032346	0.032346	7.81E-07
Case 2	0.011879	0.302563	0.143048	0.143051	3.9E-06
Case 3	0.011352	0.268404	0.078809	0.07903	0.000204
Case 4	0.003525	0.07749	0.032287	0.032286	4.19E-07
Case 5	0.013337	0.311906	0.114996	0.114992	5.01E-06

Table 6: Change in VRP indices

From this analysis, it is observed that the placement of EV charging station in weaker bus created highest impact on operational parameters as case 5 has the highest changes in VRP index. The parameter which is severely affected due to placement of EVCS is power loss. Power loss ranges from 5% increment on least affected case to 31% on severely affected case. It is then followed by reliability indices SAIFI and SAIDI and finally voltage stability. SAIFI and SAIDI change ranges from 3% at the least to 14% at the most. In case of SAIFI and SAIDI, case 2 with 5 EVCS placed on strong bus has the severe impact. The impact on voltage stability index is also not severe in comparison to Power loss, SAIFI and SAIDI. CAIDI is least to not affected due to the load increment.

4.3 Optimal EVCS placement considering VRP index

The optimization process is carried out according to the flowchart presented in Figure 6 using Particle swarm optimization technique in MATPOWER.

4.3.1 Assigning weights

For the formulation of placement problems, the weights are assigned to the operational parameters term in the objective function based on the severity of impact experienced by VRP parameters.

The steps for assigning weights to each parameter is described as:

1. The objective function y_0 is calculated assigning equal weights to w_1 , w_{21} , w_{22} , and w_3 .

For $w_1 = w_{21} = w_{22} = w_3 = 0.25$, $y_0 = 42.63$

2. The objective function values are calculated for complete weightage of each parameter simultaneously.

For $w_1 = 1$ and $w_{21} = w_{22} = w_3 = 0$, $y_1 = 1$

For $w_{21} = 1$ and $w_1 = w_{22} = w_3 = 0$, $y_{21} = 1.53511$ For $w_{22} = 1$ and $w_1 = w_{21} = w_3 = 0$, $y_{22} = 1.0013$ For $w_3 = 1$ and $w_1 = w_{21} = w_{22} = 0$, $y_3 = 167.022$

3. The deviation (Δe) of objective function values from y₀ is calculated.

$$\begin{split} & \Delta e_1 = |y_1 - y_0| = 41.63 \\ & \Delta e_{21} = |y_{21} - y_0| = 41.1 \\ & \Delta e_{22} = |y_{22} - y_0| = 41.63 \\ & \Delta e_3 = |y_3 - y_0| = 124.39 \end{split}$$
 $\begin{aligned} & \pmb{\Sigma} \ \Delta e = \Delta e_1 + \Delta e_{21} + \Delta e_{22} + \Delta e_3 = 248.75 \end{split}$

4. The weightages are calculated as:

$$w_1 = \frac{\Delta e_1}{\Sigma \Delta e} = 0.167$$
$$w_{21} = \frac{\Delta e_{21}}{\Sigma \Delta e} = 0.165$$
$$w_{22} = \frac{\Delta e_{22}}{\Sigma \Delta e} = 0.167$$
$$w_3 = \frac{\Delta e_3}{\Sigma \Delta e} = 0.5$$

The parameters assigned for optimization are summarized in following table.

Input parameters	Values
W1	0.167
W2	0.332
W3	0.5
W21	0.165
W22	0.167
n _{cs}	3
L _{max}	710 kW
V _{min}	0.95 p.u.
V _{max}	1.05 p.u.

Table 7: Weightage on input parameters

4.3.2 Optimal placement

The PSO algorithm is incorporated in this system using optimization toolbox in MATPOWER. The required input parameters and constraints are defined. The

objective function for minimization is defined and the repetitive power flow analysis is conducted throughout the optimization process. The power flow is conducted by calling runpf() function in MATPOWER. With the new power flow solutions, the particle and velocities are updated for finding the personal and global best of the system. The optimization process is exited after the conditions for optimality is satisfied. The optimal locations for the placement of EVCS considering operational parameters are reported in following table.

Optimal locations	Bus 2	Bus 5	Bus 13
Number of EVCS	3	1	1

Table 8: Optimal placement of EVCS

Three optimal locations for the placement of Electric vehicle charging stations are obtained. Bus 2 being the strongest bus of system is observed to be capable of harbouring more than three loads. But since, the maximum number of EVCS to be placed in one bus is limited to three because of concerns over voltage drop and power loss, not more than three loads are added to the bus. Hence, Bus 2, 5 and 13 are the most appropriate location for 3, 1 and 1 number of EVCS placement. The convergence graph is shown in the figure below.



Figure 13: Convergence graph after optimal placement

4.4 Discussion

4.4.1 Result Interpretation

After the placement of EVCS on optimal locations, the VRP parameters are again analyzed for assessing the grid impact. The voltage profile before and after addition of EVCS load is shown in Figure 14. It is observed that there is slight decrease in overall bus voltages after EVCS load addition which, however, acquires similar nature as the prior system. The lowest voltage is seen at the weakest bus which is 0.974957p.u. The voltage magnitude deviation is within the limits for all buses. Hence, there is minimization in voltage drop of the system after the introduction of EVCS load.



Figure 14: Voltage profile before and after optimal placement of EVCS

After placement of EVCS in the network, the power loss, SAIFI and SAIDI also show minimal increment than the former case. The active power loss of the system before load addition is 76.1 kW and the active power loss due to optimal placement of five EVCS is 92.8 kW. This obtained loss is significantly less than the power loss in Case 3 which had the placement of only four chargers. The reactive power losses before and after EVCS load addition are 59.45kVAR and 70.4kVAR respectively. Hence, it can be observed that the optimal placement of EVCS has minimized the power loss in the system. Further, the slight increase in values of SAIFI and SAIDI after optimal EVCS placement can be addressed with the improved equipment maintenance and new infrastructure installation. Hence, the optimal location for placement of electric vehicle charging station is determined considering the power grid impact.



Figure 15: Active Power loss before and after optimal placement of EVCS



Figure 16: Reactive power loss before and after optimal placement of EVCS



Figure 17: SAIFI before and after optimal placement of EVCS



Figure 18: SAIDI before and after optimal placement of EVCS

4.4.2 Electricity Demand Assessment

Figure 18 is the daily load curve of the Sanepa distribution network supplied by Thapathali switching station. It depicts the load variation on the system during different hours of day. The peak demand of the system occurs at 11:00 am and 2:00 pm of the day which is 385 kW and the total demand of the system is 6.292 MW for the day. The peak demand of a certain day was recorded to be 902 kW on previous month. The load remains high from 10:00 am to 3:00 pm of the day while the demand is less at the night time. It would be very beneficial for the system, if optimally placed EVCS can operate at off-peak time of the day.



Figure 19: Daily load curve of Sanepa Feeder line

The demand factor of the existing system is low, with the addition of EVCS load in the line, the demand factor of the system can be improved. When the optimally placed five EVCS load are connected in the system, the total load demand of the system becomes 6.860 MW for that certain day. Assuming all five charging stations are being operated at the same time of day as peak load conditions, the load factor is affected. So, the operation time of EVCS should be maintained at off-peak load if possible to balance the load curve of the system. It helps on energy management as well as demand side management of the system.

4.4.3 Financial Analysis

NEA adopts the tariff method consisting of demand charge and energy charge for billing the commercial consumers. The demand charge is charged per kVA consumption and energy charge is charged per kWh consumption. The demand charge and energy charge are different for public and private consumers. The demand charge is NRs 200/kVA/month and the energy charge are NRs 5.75/kWh for public consumers.

The table below shows maximum demand recorded this year on one of NEA charging stations installed in Ratnapark DC which is 117 kVA with total of 14387 kWh energy.

Year	Month	Demand	Previous	Current	Units
		(kVA)	Reading	Reading	(kWh)
2080	1	117	15369	29756	14387

Table 9: Meter reading history of a charging station in Ratnapark DC

For random placement if 5 chargers in case 2, the power loss is 99.032 kW and for optimal placement of 5 chargers, the power loss is 92.8 kW. In a certain day, if the peak demand is 902 kW, then, random placement results in 11% while optimal placement results in 10% loss of energy for that certain time of the day. This 1% energy saved through optimal placement in a month result in energy bill savings of:

Energy bill savings = 1%*14387*5.75 = NRs 827.2525.

CHAPTER FIVE: CONCLUSION

5.1 Conclusion

The number of Electric Vehicles in context of Nepal is rising rapidly. To accommodate such technology, its infrastructures are also being extended throughout the country. While the installation of EV charging stations on different parts of country is being carried out, the study of its impact on the distribution network is also necessary. This study realizes the analysis of operational parameters of distribution network and the impact caused by such load addition. This work revolves around the Sanepa distribution feeder line consisting of 21 buses. The strong and weak bus in this feeder line were recognized by determining the Voltage Sensitivity Factor. The impact with the addition of EV charging station load in this feeder line is studied by making several cases. The load flow analysis along with the results from VSF determination were the basis for the formulation of 5 cases in this study. The change in VSI, reliability indices and power loss on these cases concluded that, the weak buses are to be provided with least number of charging stations to improve the system stability, reliability and efficiency. With the increased load addition on the line, the voltage profile keeps on degrading and power loss increases. The number of charging station on each bus should not be more than 5 to avoid severe case of power loss. The power loss is the mostly affected parameter in this study so, heavier weightage is assigned to the power loss while formulating optimization function. Adding constraints to the formulated optimization problem of VRP index, the optimal locations for EVCS placement are determined. The load addition certainly caused the distribution parameters to fluctuate but the optimal placement minimized the extent of such fluctuations. The results obtained effectively reduce the impact on VRP parameters. Hence, the EVCS are optimally located considering least impact to the power distribution grid.

5.2 Recommendation

The further work can be directed towards the integration of distributed generations which can uplift the scenario for placement of EV charging station catering higher number of consumers and also improving the overall reliability, voltage deviation and power loss of the system.

REFERENCES

- Acharya, S. R., Pande, K., Batthan, G., & Earley, R. (2015). National Sustainable Transport Strategy (NSTS) for Nepal (2015-2040). November, 1–37.
- Ahiakwo, C. O., Idoniboyeobu, D. C., Braide, S. L., & Onita, C. L. (2022). Maximum Loadability Assessment of the Nigerian 330kv Transmission Network Using P-V Curve Method. *Iconic Research and Engineering Journal*, 5(11), 231–242.
- Amin, A., Tareen, W. U. K., Usman, M., Ali, H., Bari, I., Horan, B., Mekhilef, S., Asif, M., Ahmed, S., & Mahmood, A. (2020). A review of optimal charging strategy for electric vehicles under dynamic pricing schemes in the distribution charging network. In *Sustainability (Switzerland)*. https://doi.org/10.3390/su122310160
- Ardakanian, O., Rosenberg, C., & Keshav, S. (2013). Distributed control of electric vehicle charging. *E-Energy 2013 - Proceedings of the 4th ACM International Conference on Future Energy Systems*. https://doi.org/10.1145/2487166.2487178
- Arif, S. M., Lie, T. T., Seet, B. C., Ayyadi, S., & Jensen, K. (2021). Review of electric vehicle technologies, charging methods, standards and optimization techniques. In *Electronics (Switzerland)*. https://doi.org/10.3390/electronics10161910
- Ashwin, N., Sreedevi, J., Dixit, P., & Meera, K. S. (2019). Voltage stability of power system using pv curve and pmu data. *International Journal of Recent Technology* and Engineering, 8(3), 7654–7659. https://doi.org/10.35940/ijrte.C6227.098319
- Bhadra, J., & Chattopadhyay, T. K. (2016). Analysis of distribution network by reliability indices. 2015 International Conference on Energy, Power and Environment: Towards Sustainable Growth, ICEPE 2015. https://doi.org/10.1109/EPETSG.2015.7510094
- Deb, S., Tammi, K., Kalita, K., & Mahanta, P. (2018a). Impact of electric vehicle charging station load on distribution network. *Energies*. https://doi.org/10.3390/en11010178
- Deb, S., Tammi, K., Kalita, K., & Mahanta, P. (2018b). Impact of electric vehicle charging station load on distribution network. *Energies*, 11(1), 1–25.

https://doi.org/10.3390/en11010178

- Eminoglu, U., & Hocaoglu, M. H. (2007). A voltage stability index for radial distribution networks. *Proceedings of the Universities Power Engineering Conference*. https://doi.org/10.1109/UPEC.2007.4468982
- Geske, M., Komarnicki, P., Stötzer, M., & Styczynski, Z. A. (2010). Modeling and simulation of electric car penetration in the distribution power system Case study. *Proceedings - International Symposium: Modern Electric Power Systems, MEPS'10.*
- Giannakis, E., Serghides, D., Dimitriou, S., & Zittis, G. (2020). Land transport CO2 emissions and climate change: evidence from Cyprus. *International Journal of Sustainable Energy*. https://doi.org/10.1080/14786451.2020.1743704
- Islam, M. M., Shareef, H., & Mohamed, A. (2015a). A review of techniques for optimal placement and sizing of electric vehicle charging stations. *Przeglad Elektrotechniczny*, 91(8), 122–126. https://doi.org/10.15199/48.2015.08.29
- Islam, M. M., Shareef, H., & Mohamed, A. (2015b). Optimal Quick Charging Station Placement for Electric Vehicles. *Applied Mechanics and Materials*. https://doi.org/10.4028/www.scientific.net/amm.785.697
- Karki, M., Kunwar, D. R., Sharma, B., Paudel, S., & Ojha, T. N. (2019). Power Flow management among PV, BESS and Grid for EV Charging. *Technical Journal*. https://doi.org/10.3126/tj.v1i1.27708
- Kessel, P., & Glavitsch, H. (1986). Estimating the voltage stability of a power system. *IEEE Transactions on Power Delivery*. https://doi.org/10.1109/TPWRD.1986.4308013
- Kita, E., & Shin, Y. Bin. (2012). Application of particle swarm optimization to packing problem. *Handbook of Genetic Algorithms: New Research*, November 2014, 333– 346.
- Krupa, A. (2019). Barriers and Opportunities to Electric Vehicle Development in Nepal. In *Independent Study Project (ISP) Collection*.

- Mazidi, P., & Sreenivas, G. N. (2015). Reliability Analysis of A Radial Distributed Generation Distribution System. *International Journal of Electronics and Electical Engineering*, 2, 279–285. https://doi.org/10.47893/ijeee.2015.1169
- MoFE. (2021). Assessment of Electric Cooking Targets for Nepal's 2020 Nationally Determined Contributions (NDC). March.
- Muthukannan, S., & Karthikaikannan, D. (2022). Multi-objective Planning Strategy for the Placement of Electric-Vehicle Charging Stations Using Hybrid Optimization Algorithm. *IEEE Access*, 10, 1–1. https://doi.org/10.1109/access.2022.3168830
- NEA. (2020). Employer 's Requirements.
- Rahman, M. M., Barua, S., Zohora, S. T., Hasan, K., & Aziz, T. (2013). Voltage sensitivity based site selection for PHEV charging station in commercial distribution system. *Asia-Pacific Power and Energy Engineering Conference, APPEEC*. https://doi.org/10.1109/APPEEC.2013.6837191
- Raj Kunwar, D., Sharma, B., Paudel, S., Nath Ojha, T., & Karki, M. (2020). Relieving Grid by Adding PV and BESS for Economical Charging of EV in the Charging Station. *American Journal of Computer Science and Technology*. https://doi.org/10.11648/j.ajcst.20200301.12
- Sangob, S., & Sirisumrannukul, S. (2021). Optimal Sequential Distribution Planning for Low-Voltage Network With Electric Vehicle Loads. *Frontiers in Energy Research*. https://doi.org/10.3389/fenrg.2021.673165
- Shakya, S. R., & Shrestha, R. M. (2011). Transport sector electrification in a hydropower resource rich developing country: Energy security, environmental and climate change co-benefits. *Energy for Sustainable Development*. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.esd.2011.04.003
- Yuvaraj, T., Devabalaji, K. R., Thanikanti, S. B., Aljafari, B., & Nwulu, N. (2023). Minimizing the electric vehicle charging stations impact in the distribution networks by simultaneous allocation of DG and DSTATCOM with considering uncertainty in load. *Energy Reports*, 10, 1796–1817. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.egyr.2023.08.035

APPENDIX A: LINE DATA

Line no	Voltage level (kV)	From	То	Length (km)	Conductor	Resistance Ohm/km
1	11	Bus 1	Bus 2	0.2925	XLPE	0.0754
2	11	Bus 2	Bus 3	0.3129	Dog	0.273
3	11	Bus 3	Bus 4	0.1558	Dog	0.273
4	11	Bus 4	Bus 5	0.2195	Dog	0.273
5	11	Bus 5	Bus 6	0.0907	Dog	0.273
6	11	Bus 6	Bus 7	0.1766	Dog	0.273
7	11	Bus 7	Bus 8	0.3072	HT ABC	0.206
8	11	Bus 8	Bus 9	0.0840	HT ABC	0.206
9	11	Bus 9	Bus 10	0.1539	HT ABC	0.206
10	11	Bus 10	Bus 11	0.1500	Dog	0.273
11	11	Bus 11	Bus 12	0.0588	Dog	0.273
12	11	Bus 6	Bus 13	0.0870	Dog	0.273
13	11	Bus 7	Bus 14	0.0607	Dog	0.273
14	11	Bus 14	Bus 15	0.1228	Dog	0.273
15	11	Bus 9	Bus 16	0.1539	HT ABC	0.206
16	11	Bus 7	Bus 17	0.8733	HT ABC	0.206
17	11	Bus 17	Bus 18	0.1068	Dog	0.273
18	11	Bus 18	Bus 19	0.2448	Dog	0.273

19	11	Bus 19	Bus 20	0.0052	Dog	0.273
20	11	Bus 18	Bus 21	0.5706	Dog	0.273

Bus no.	Bus name	Load (kVA)	P(kW)	Q(kVAr)
1	Thapathali SS	0	0	0
2	Hanuman Than_200N	200	170.0	105.36
3	Kupandol Bus Stop_250N	250	212.5	131.70
4	Juwagal Chowk_100N	100	85.0	52.68
5	Hotel Himalaya_1000P	1000	850.0	526.78
6	Near Nabil Bank_100N	100	85.0	52.68
7	Near Engineering Collage Wall_100N	100	85.0	52.68
8	Near Telecom Office_200N	200	170.0	105.36
9	Sajha Petrol Pump_200P	200	170.0	105.36
10	Nidhant hospital Opposite_100N	100	85.0	52.68
11	Near Police Bit_200N	200	170.0	105.36
12	Labim Mahal_1000P	1000	850.0	526.78
13	Pulchowk Engineering College_100P	100	85.0	52.68
14	Bakhundol Mod_200N	200	170.0	105.36
15	Bista Camp Bakhundol_100N	100	85.0	52.68
16	Department of Local Infrastructure_100P	100	85.0	52.68
17	United Nations_100P	100	85.0	52.68

18	Sanchayakosh_400P	400	340.0	210.71
19	High Court Patan_100P	100	85.0	52.68
20	Family Planning Office_200P	200	170.0	105.36
21	Thula Kardata Karayalaya_200P	200	170.0	105.36

Bus no.	Bus name	Failure Rate (F/year)	Outage Duration (hours/year)	Consumer Number	Load (kW)
2	Hanuman Than_200N	46	8.5	60	170
3	Kupandol Bus Stop_250N	46	8.5	75	212.5
4	Juwagal Chowk_100N	46	8.5	30	85
5	Hotel Himalaya_1000P	46	8.5	1	850
6	Near Nabil Bank_100N	55	10.2	30	85
7	NearEngineeringCollageWall_100N	55	10.2	30	85
8	Near Telecom Office_200N	55	10.2	60	170
9	Sajha Petrol Pump_200P	55	10.2	1	170
10	Nidhant hospital Opposite_100N	55	10.2	30	85
11	Near Police Bit_200N	55	10.2	60	170
12	Labim Mahal_1000P	55	10.2	1	850
13	Pulchowk Engineering College_100P	55	10.2	1	85
14	Bakhundol Mod_200N	55	10.2	60	170
15	Bista Camp Bakhundol_100N	55	10.2	30	85
16	Department of Local Infrastructure_100P	55	10.2	1	85
17	United Nations_100P	55	10.2	1	85

APPENDIX C: RELIABILITY DATA

18	Sanchayakosh_400P	55	10.2	1	340
19	High Court Patan_100P	55	10.2	1	85
20	Family Planning Office_200P	55	10.2	1	170
21	Thula Kardata Karayalaya_200P	55	10.2	1	170

APPENDIX D: PLAGIARISM REPORT

1	4%		
SIMIL	ARITY INDEX		
РКIМ 1	elibrary.tucl.edu.np		10
	Internet	430 words —	47
2	gyan.iitg.ernet.in Internet	231 words —	2%
3	www.mdpi.com	87 words —	1%
4	Sanchari Deb, Xiao-Zhi Gao, Kari Tammi, Karuna Kalita, Pinakeswar Mahanta. "A Novel Chicken Swarm and Teaching Learning based Algorithm 1 Vehicle Charging Station Placement Problem", Er ^{Crossref}	58 words — for Electric hergy, 2020	19
5	Sanchari Deb, Kari Tammi, Karuna Kalita, Pinakeshwar Mahanta. "Impact of Electric Vehicl Charging Station Load on Distribution Network", ^{Crossref}	e 54 words — < Energies, 2018	19
6	usermanual.wiki Internet	32 words — <	19
7	core.ac.uk Internet	30 words — <	19
8	ebin.pub Internet	29 words $-$ <	19
9	Nihith SPVS Koundinya, S Vignesh, K Narayanan, Gulshan Sharma, Tomonobu Senjyu. "Voltage Stability Analysis of Distribution Systems in the p Electric Vehicle Charging Stations with Uncoordir Scheme", 2020 International Conference on Sma Energy Systems (SGES), 2020 Crossref	28 words — <	19
0	Sanchari Deb, Karuna Kalita, Pinakeswar Mahanta. "Distribution Network planning considering the impact of Electric Vehicle chargir load", Elsevier BV, 2019 crossref	24 words — <	19
11	Lecture Notes in Electrical Engineering, 2015. Crossref	21 words — <	19
12	researchportal.northumbria.ac.uk	19 words $-<$	19
13	shellfoundation.org Internet	19 words — <	19
14	Billinton, R "Rural distribution system reliability worth evaluation using individual customer outage cost characteristics", International Journa Power and Energy Systems, 200405 crossref	18 words — <	19
15	Senthil Kumar R, Pradeep Katta, Saravanakumar K, Naresh Kumar S, Vigneshwaran A K, Vigneshwaran S. "An Efficient Andean Condor Alg Optimal Charging Stations for Electric Vehicle", 2 International Conference on Circuit Power and C Technologies (ICCPCT), 2023	18 words — < gorithm for 023 omputing	19

16	erepository.uonbi.ac.ke:8080	17 words - < 1%
17	elibrary.tucl.edu.np:8080	16 words — < 1%
18	res.mdpi.com Internet	16 words - < 1%
19	umpir.ump.edu.my Internet	16 words - < 1%
20	www.researchgate.net	16 words - < 1%
21	Sanchari Deb, Karuna Kalita, Pinakeshwar Mahanta. "Review of impact of electric vehicle charging station on the power grid", 2017 Interna Conference on Technological Advancements in Po Energy (TAP Energy), 2017	15 words — < 1% ational ower and
22	Jongbaek An, Taehoon Hong, Minhyun Lee. "Determining the optimal trading price of electricity for energy consumers and prosumers" and Sustainable Energy Reviews, 2022 crossref	13 words — < 1% , Renewable
23	Pinaki Dhar, Niladri Chakraborty. "Optimal reactive power dispatch involving SMES by Cuckoo search algorithm", 2016 21st Century Ene Materials, Systems and Applications (ICTFCEN), 2 Crossref	13 words — < 1% ergy Needs - 016
24	financedocbox.com	13 words — < 1%
25	Sanchari Deb, Xiao-Zhi Gao, Kari Tammi, Karuna Kalita, Pinakeswar Mahanta. "Nature-Inspired Optimization Algorithms Applied for Solving Cha Placement Problem: Overview and Comparison", Computational Methods in Engineering, 2019 Crossref	12 words — < 1% rging Station Archives of
26	docecity.com	12 words - < 1%
27	id.scribd.com	12 words - < 1%
28	repository.tudelft.nl Internet	12 words - < 1%
29	vetfgc.edu.in	12 words - < 1%
30	sun-connect.org	11 words - < 1%
31	www.extrica.com	11 words - < 1%
32	Sigma Ray, Kumari Kasturi, Samarjit Patnaik, Manas Ranjan Nayak. "Review of electric vehicles integration impacts in distribution networks: Plac charging/discharging strategies, objectives and o models", Journal of Energy Storage, 2023 Crossref	s 10 words — < 1% cement, optimisation
33	Wei Lin, Heng Wei. "Technological Review of Charging Demand and Distribution Models for Electric Vehicles", International Conference on Tr and Development 2023, 2023	10 words — < 1%

34	dspace.mit.edu Internet	10 words —	<	1%
35	research.aalto.fi Internet	10 words —	<	1%
36	www.arxiv-vanity.com	10 words —	<	1%
37	Atul R. Phadke, S.K. Bansal, K.R. Niazi. "A Comparison of Voltage Stability Indices for Placin Shunt FACTS Controllers", 2008 First International on Emerging Trends in Engineering and Technolo Crossref	9 words — Il Conference ogy, 2008	<	1%
38	Fareed Ahmad, Atif Iqbal, Imtiaz Ashraf, Mousa Marzband, Irfan khan. "Optimal location of electr vehicle charging station and its impact on distribu A review", Energy Reports, 2022 Crossref	9 words — ic ution network:	<	1%
39	L. Goel, R. Billinton. "Impacts of pertinent factors on reliability worth indices in an electric power system", Electric Power Systems Research, 1997 crossref	9 words —	<	1%
40	Oleboge K. P. Mokoka, Kehinde O. Awodele. "Reliability Evaluation of distribution networks using NEPLAN & amp; DIgSILENT power factory", 2013 Crossref	9 words — 2013 Africon,	<	1%
41	docs.neu.edu.tr	9 words —	<	1%
42	www.ee.kth.se	9 words —	<	1%
43	Arvind Pratap, Prabhakar Tiwari, Rakesh Maurya, Bindeshwar Singh. "Minimization of Electric Vehicl Charging Stations impact on Radial Distribution N- optimal allocation of DSTATCOM and DG using Afr Optimization Algorithm", International Journal of A Energy, 2022 Crosser	e ⁸ words — ^{<} etworks by ican Vulture Ambient	< 1	%
43	Arvind Pratap, Prabhakar Tiwari, Rakesh Maurya, Bindeshwar Singh. "Minimization of Electric Vehicl Charging Stations impact on Radial Distribution Ne optimal allocation of DSTATCOM and DG using Afr Optimization Algorithm", International Journal of A Energy, 2022 Crossed Bijay B. Pradhan, Ram M. Shrestha, Bundit Limmeechokchai. "Achieving the Paris Agreement" 2 degree target in Nepal: the potential role of a ca Climate Policy, 2020	e ⁸ words — ^{<} etworks by ican Vulture Ambient s ⁸ words — ^{<} rbon tax",	< 1	% %
43 44 45	Arvind Pratap, Prabhakar Tiwari, Rakesh Maurya, Bindeshwar Singh. "Minimization of Electric Vehicl Charging Stations impact on Radial Distribution Nu optimal allocation of DSTATCOM and DG using Afr Optimization Algorithm", International Journal of A Energy, 2022 crossref Bijay B. Pradhan, Ram M. Shrestha, Bundit Limmeechokchai. "Achieving the Paris Agreement" 2 degree target in Nepal: the potential role of a ca Climate Policy, 2020 crossref C. Jayapalan, Thangatur Sukumar Hariharan, L.S. Ganesh. "Power supply to electric vehicle charging stations in India;Justification of a framework for a adaptive electricity tariff policy", The Electricity Jou crossref	e ⁸ words — ^{<} etworks by ican Vulture Ambient s ⁸ words — ^{<} s ⁶ words — ^{<} dynamic and irnal, 2022	< 1 < 1 < 1	% %
43 44 45	Arvind Pratap, Prabhakar Tiwari, Rakesh Maurya, Bindeshwar Singh. "Minimization of Electric Vehicl Charging Stations impact on Radial Distribution Nu optimal allocation of DSTATCOM and DG using Afr Optimization Algorithm", International Journal of A Energy, 2022 crossref Bijay B. Pradhan, Ram M. Shrestha, Bundit Limmeechokchai. "Achieving the Paris Agreement" 2 degree target in Nepal: the potential role of a ca Climate Policy, 2020 crossref C. Jayapalan, Thangatur Sukumar Hariharan, L.S. Ganesh. "Power supply to electric vehicle charging stations in India;Justification of a framework for a adaptive electricity tariff policy", The Electricity Jou crossref	e ⁸ words — < etworks by ican Vulture Ambient s ⁸ words — < irbon tax", 8 words — < dynamic and irnal, 2022 8 words — <	< 1 < 1 < 1	9% 9%
4344454647	Arvind Pratap, Prabhakar Tiwari, Rakesh Maurya, Bindeshwar Singh. "Minimization of Electric Vehicl Charging Stations impact on Radial Distribution Nu optimal allocation of DSTATCOM and DG using Afr Optimization Algorithm", International Journal of A Energy, 2022 crossref Bijay B. Pradhan, Ram M. Shrestha, Bundit Limmeechokchai. "Achieving the Paris Agreement" 2 degree target in Nepal: the potential role of a ca Climate Policy, 2020 crossref C. Jayapalan, Thangatur Sukumar Hariharan, L.S. Ganesh. "Power supply to electric vehicle charging stations in India;Justification of a framework for a adaptive electricity tariff policy", The Electricity Jou crossref C. Reis, F.P.M. Barbosa. "A Comparison of Voltage Stability Indices", MELECON 2006 - 2006 IEEE Mediterranean Electrotechnical Conference, 2006 crossref	e ⁸ words — < etworks by ican Vulture Ambient s ⁸ words — < s ⁸ words — < dynamic and irnal, 2022 8 words — < 8 words — < 8 words — < 2 words —	< 1 < 1 < 1 < 1	% % %

	Electronics Electrical Drives Automation and Motio (SPEEDAM), 2016. Crossref	n	
49	M. Sedghi, A. Ahmadian, E. Pashajavid, M. Aliakbar-Golkar. "Storage scheduling for optimal energy management in active distribution network load, wind, and plug-in electric vehicles uncertainti of Renewable and Sustainable Energy, 2015 crossref	8 words — < k considering ies", Journal	1%
50	Mahmoud Zadehbagheri, Vahdat Nazerian, Mohammad Javad Kiani. "Charging and discharging of PHEVs in smart grids with ICA and " algorithms with the approach of simultaneously re network peak load and distribution costs", Journal Storage, 2023 Crossref	8 words — < TLBO educing of Energy	1%
51	Mohamed Tolba, Hegazy Rezk, Vladimir Tulsky, Ahmed Diab, Almoataz Abdelaziz, Artem Vanin. "Impact of Optimum Allocation of Renewable Dist Generations on Distribution Networks Based on D Optimization Algorithms", Energies, 2018 crossref	8 words — < ributed ifferent	1%
52	Mohd Bilal, M. Rizwan. "Electric Vehicles in a smar grid: A comprehensive survey on optimal location of charging station", IET Smart Grid, 2020 Crossref	^t 8 words — <	1%
53	S. C. VALLABHAN, B. JEYASURYA. "APPLICATION OI ARTIFICIAL NEURAL NETWORKS FOR PREDICTION OF VOLTAGE INSTABILITY", Electric Machines & Po 1997 crossref	F 8 words — < wer Systems,	1%
_			
54	S. Muthukannan, D. Karthikaikannan. "Multi- objective Planning Strategy for the Placement of Electric-Vehicle Charging Stations Using Hybrid Op Algorithm", IEEE Access, 2022 Crossef	8 words — < ' timization	%
54	S. Muthukannan, D. Karthikaikannan. "Multi- objective Planning Strategy for the Placement of Electric-Vehicle Charging Stations Using Hybrid Op Algorithm", IEEE Access, 2022 crossef Sanchari Deb, Karuna Kalita, Pinakeshwar Mahanta. "Impact of electric vehicle charging stations on reliability of distribution network", 2017 International Conference on Technological Advance Power and Energy (TAP Energy), 2017 crossef	8 words — < timization 8 words — < r ements in	% %
54 55	S. Muthukannan, D. Karthikaikannan. "Multi- objective Planning Strategy for the Placement of Electric-Vehicle Charging Stations Using Hybrid Op Algorithm", IEEE Access, 2022 Crossref Sanchari Deb, Karuna Kalita, Pinakeshwar Mahanta. "Impact of electric vehicle charging stations on reliability of distribution network", 2017 International Conference on Technological Advance Power and Energy (TAP Energy), 2017 Crossref article.sciencepublishinggroup.com	8 words — < timization 8 words — < 7 ements in 8 words — <	% % %
54 55 56	S. Muthukannan, D. Karthikaikannan. "Multi- objective Planning Strategy for the Placement of Electric-Vehicle Charging Stations Using Hybrid Op Algorithm", IEEE Access, 2022 Cressref Sanchari Deb, Karuna Kalita, Pinakeshwar Mahanta. "Impact of electric vehicle charging stations on reliability of distribution network", 2017 International Conference on Technological Advance Power and Energy (TAP Energy), 2017 Crossref article.sciencepublishinggroup.com Internet	8 words — < timization 8 words — < 7 ements in 8 words — < 8 words — < 8 words — <	1 % 1 % 1 %
55 55 57 58	S. Muthukannan, D. Karthikaikannan. "Multi- objective Planning Strategy for the Placement of Electric-Vehicle Charging Stations Using Hybrid Op Algorithm", IEEE Access, 2022 Crossref Sanchari Deb, Karuna Kalita, Pinakeshwar Mahanta. "Impact of electric vehicle charging stations on reliability of distribution network", 2017 International Conference on Technological Advance Power and Energy (TAP Energy), 2017 Crossref article.sciencepublishinggroup.com Internet Inudiva-portal.org Internet	8 words — < timization 8 words — < 7 ements in 8 words — < 8 words — < 8 words — < 8 words — < 8 words — <	1% 1% 1% 1%
54 55 57 58 59	S. Muthukannan, D. Karthikaikannan. "Multi- objective Planning Strategy for the Placement of Electric-Vehicle Charging Stations Using Hybrid Op Algorithm", IEEE Access, 2022 Crosserf Sanchari Deb, Karuna Kalita, Pinakeshwar Mahanta. "Impact of electric vehicle charging stations on reliability of distribution network", 2017 International Conference on Technological Advance Power and Energy (TAP Energy), 2017 Crosserf article.sciencepublishinggroup.com Internet Inu.diva-portal.org Internet mdpi-res.com Internet	8 words — < timization 8 words — < 7 ements in 8 words — < 8 words — < 7 words — < 8 words — < 8 words — < 7 words — < 8 words — < 7 words — < 8 words — < 7 words — 7 w	1% 1% 1% 1%
54 55 57 58 59 60	S. Muthukannan, D. Karthikaikannan. "Multi- objective Planning Strategy for the Placement of Electric-Vehicle Charging Stations Using Hybrid Op Algorithm", IEEE Access, 2022 Crossref Sanchari Deb, Karuna Kalita, Pinakeshwar Mahanta. "Impact of electric vehicle charging stations on reliability of distribution network", 2017 International Conference on Technological Advance Power and Energy (TAP Energy), 2017 Crossref article.sciencepublishinggroup.com Internet Inu.diva-portal.org Internet Indpi-res.com Internet repository.ju.edu.et Internet	8 words — < timization 8 words — < 7 ements in 8 words — < 8 words — < 7 %	1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
54 55 57 58 59 60 61	S. Muthukannan, D. Karthikaikannan. "Multi- objective Planning Strategy for the Placement of Electric-Vehicle Charging Stations Using Hybrid Op Algorithm", IEEE Access, 2022 Crosserf Sanchari Deb, Karuna Kalita, Pinakeshwar Mahanta. "Impact of electric vehicle charging stations on reliability of distribution network", 2017 International Conference on Technological Advance Power and Energy (TAP Energy), 2017 Crosserf article.sciencepublishinggroup.com Internet Inu.diva-portal.org Internet mdpi-res.com Internet research.chalmers.se Internet Sigma-not.pl Internet	8 words — < ' timization 8 words — < ' rements in 8 words — < ' 8 words — < '	1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
54 55 57 58 59 60 61	S. Muthukannan, D. Karthikaikannan. "Multi- objective Planning Strategy for the Placement of Electric-Vehicle Charging Stations Using Hybrid Op Algorithm", IEEE Access, 2022 Crossref Sanchari Deb, Karuna Kalita, Pinakeshwar Mahanta. "Impact of electric vehicle charging stations on reliability of distribution network", 2017 International Conference on Technological Advance Power and Energy (TAP Energy), 2017 Crossref article.sciencepublishinggroup.com Internet Inudiva-portal.org Internet Internet repository.ju.edu.et Internet research.chalmers.se Internet sigma-not.pl Internet Internet	8 words — < ' timization 8 words — < ' 8 words — < '	1% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%

64	www.imanagerpublications.com	8 words — <	1%
65	www.nepjol.info	8 words — < *	1%
66	www.smartgrid.gov	8 words — < *	1%
67	A. N. Archana, T. Rajeev. "A Novel Reliability Index Based Approach for EV Charging Station Allocation in Distribution System", IEEE Transactions on Indu Applications, 2021 Crossref	7 words — < ' stry	1%
68	Al-Ahmed, Ahmed Saleh A "Integrated Energy Management System for Microgrids with Hybrid Renewable Generation, Energy Storage and Contr Loads", King Fahd University of Petroleum and Mi Arabia), 2023 ProQuest	7 words — < ' ollable nerals (Saudi	1%
69	Jitendra Singh Bhadoriya, Atma Ram Gupta, Ashwani Kumar, Rohit Ray, Surita Maini. "Enhancement of the distribution network in the p EV charging stations augmented by distributed ge Electrical Engineering, 2023 Crossref	7 words — < 7 presence of pneration",	1%
70	Kong, X.Q "Optimal operation of a micro- combined cooling, heating and power system driven by a gas engine", Energy Conversion and M 200903 Crossref	7 words — < 1 lanagement,	1%
71	Nandini K. Krishnamurthy, Jayalakshmi N. Sabhahit, Vinay Kumar Jadoun, Dattatraya Naraya	7 words $ < '$	1%
	Gaonkar et al. "Optimal Placement and Sizing of Charging Infrastructure in a Grid-Tied DC Microg Modified TLBO Method", Energies, 2023 Crossref	Electric Vehicle rid Using	
72	Seyyed Mohammad Rezvani, Ali Asghar Shojaei, Mehdi Nobahari. "Investigating the Optimal Location Determination Index of Charging Statio Perspectives of Distribution Companies, Owners Stations and Owners of Electric Vehicles", 2023 1 Conference on Renewable Energy & Distributed (ICREDG), 2023 Crossref	7 words — ns from the of Charging 0th Iranian Generation	: 1%
73	Md. Mainul Islam, Hussein Shareef, Azah Mohamed. "Optimal Quick Charging Station Placement for Electric Vehicles", Applied Mechan Materials, 2015 Crossref	6 words — <	: 1%
74	Mousavi, Seyed Morteza. "Thermo-Hydro- Mechanical Analysis of Evaporation from Unsaturated Soils", The University of Western Or (Canada), 2022	6 words — <	: 1%